HUDSON, NH BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Minutes of the October 12, 2021 Meeting

- 1. <u>CALL TO ORDER</u> by Chairman McGrath the meeting of October 12, 2021 at 6:59 p.m. in the Selectmen Meeting Room at Town Hall
- 2. <u>PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE</u> led by Town Planner Brian Groth

3. <u>ATTENDANCE</u>

Board of Selectmen: Marilyn McGrath, David Morin, Kara Roy, Brett Gagnon, Bob Guessferd

<u>Staff/Others</u>: Steve Malizia, Town Administrator; Rob Buxton - Fire Chief; Bill Avery - Police Chief; Brian Groth - Town Planner; Gary Gasdia - School Board Chairman; Jill Laffin - Executive Assistant

4. PUBLIC INPUT

James Crowley, 4 Fairway Drive

Mr. Crowley started off saving James Crowley, and I live at four Fairway Drive. I want to apologize the Board of Selectmen, if I unnecessarily use up your valuable time, I need your guidance to how to address my concern. It is also appears my concern has to be addressed publicly to avoid any problems for town representatives or the Town as a whole in the future. First, some history. Some weeks ago, I came before the Board of Selectmen to ask about making changes to the zoning ordinance. At the time, I should have mentioned Hudson Regulation chapters as well. I was informed the Planning Board was in the process of reviewing them, and that was the appropriate route to follow. One week ago, I attended the Joint Board of Selectmen Planning Board meeting. The agenda was to review New Town Code for Elected Planning Board members. At that joint meeting, I noticed the town attorney advising the town even had a book of applicable write essays with what looked like many bookmarks. My intent was to observe firsthand the process of changing town regulations. For my understanding, public hearings are necessary prior to the March town vote on proposed changes. I think the only other alternative is by public petition to get something on the March ballot example being the election of planning board members. As a point of pointing them. After the joint meeting, I talked to the town planner about possible revisions to Chapter 202 explosives. As I understand it from him, the Planning Board limits their public review and discussions to land use regulations, such as what was presented last week about the Planning Board and site subdivision, driveway and storm water regulations, and then also, I guess, 334 at the moment. So it appears I have to bring my concern back to the Board of Selectmen for guidance and how to proceed. Before you respond, I would like to state that I consider that the public notification requirements in Chapter 202 for explosives and resulting blasting are insufficient in today's environment. Specifically, 202-18 requires three consecutive days notification in a local daily newspaper, and once it started blasting in a local weekly newspaper, the Telegraph and former Hudson Litchfield News no longer fulfill this requirement. The regulation needs to be updated to truly inform the public in a way that protects everyone, including Landover landowner. With that, sufficient blasting notification has been met. Currently, the only real notification of scenes seemed to be your windows rattling or if you are lucky or possibly unlucky, depending on individual opinion and getting a required 202-19 pre blast survey within five hundred feet of the anticipated blast area, possibly an updated process such as a site plan or subdivision application acceptance or conditional use notification requirements could be incorporated. However, additional blasting may be required after an initial notification. How would that be handled? I do not have answers but feel it should be discussed in public to hopefully obtain the greatest equitable solution to all. I need Board of Selectmen guidance on how to proceed with

my concerns since the Board provides recommendation votes on various items on the March ballot, I would prefer some feedback or your thoughts of possible. I don't know if I should try to get this on the Board of Selectmen agenda or press for future Planning Board or petition.

Chairman McGrath replied I'm not quite sure myself and I likely misunderstood what you were trying to get at the last meeting when you were here. I thought that it was zoning. You know, zoning changes like lot lines, uses, things like that. I should have pressed further for more info. Mr. Crowley replied personally, I was kind of vague. I was kind of a novice in this area, to say the least, so I was trying to find out. Chairman McGrath then said I'm not I'm not so sure myself, but let me check with we'll check with the Zoning Administrator and we'll also check with the Town Planner and get some guidance from them. And if it needs to come before us, we'll notify you and we'll notify you either way. Mr. Crowley responded saying Ok, I appreciate that.

The Town Administrator said if I could interject, so that's Town Code. Town Code is this Board. So either the Department Head staff comes forward with recommendation, a citizen comes forward the recommendation. You have the authority to change Town Code with two public hearings if you're so if you're so inclined to do so. As you recall, we've done that with other parts of Town Code. Those are not zoning ordinances. That's actually Town Code. I think propagated with some of the fire department's input for the explosive chapter. So that is that is collectively the Board of Selectmen. So if there's something you're proposing, I would presume you'd bring it to the Board of Selectmen. They could refer it to staff for review and they could bring it back here. If the Boards inclined, they would do two public hearings allow the public to comment. And after two public hearings that the Board is inclined to, they could vote to change the Town Code because what you're specifically referring to is in Chapter 202 - Town Code that's this Board of Selectmen.

Well, for me, as I understand, are references to the Fire Department when you read the code. So maybe I should approach him first. That might be a good recommendation to approach the Fire Chief who's nodding his head in assent, because what you make is some valid points about the newspapers. We clearly can't comply. There's no daily newspaper. Mr. Crowley added, I mean, it's unfair to everybody, even the landlord.

The Town Administrator said but I don't want you to go down the Planning Board. There's not a Planning Board issue. It's a Town Code and so therefore, if you work with Fire Chief, if you see some things that you, you recommend, it would come to this Board for consideration. If the Board's amenable, it has to have two public hearings. I said the two public hearings, the Board could simply vote and change that part of the code. Mr. Crowley then said well, thanks for allowing me to this time and thanks for your service.

Sue Gosselin, Fairway Drive

I would just like to express my recommendation for Mr. Thompson, for the Zoning Board, as you know that we all kind of started watching more in the past year and a half with our neighborhood. And I watched him over the last year and a half, and he's not part of our neighborhood. He's part of the Town and he, in my opinion, showed up in all the meetings through the pandemic. He was always there asking the appropriate questions very rational, very logical and very mild mannered. You know, as you saw at court, I'm kind of looking for a little bit of balance instead of the ups and downs. And what I saw, the questions that he asked were some questions about. If that's not dedication for, you know, then I don't know what it is. I know from the past several years there's been comments, well, you know, it's easy to be on this side of the table and not on that side of the table. And if you cared or if you feel like you want to change things, then come join us. And here we have a gentleman who's willing to do that through a pandemic, through something that was about the town and not just my neighborhood. My two cents, thank you for your time.

Heidi Jakoby, 94 Gowing Road

I'm just here to speak and endorse both Edward Thompson and Dean Sakati. I've known them for over a year. I find them both to be very balanced and very thought forward. They think before they act, they have a high level of integrity and a high level of ethics. And before making any decision, I truly believe they would consider whether there's any conflict of interest because I know that was a concern of the board, whether it's appropriate for them to be part of the conversation, how to be part of the conversation and what questions to ask. What I have always respected in both of these men are the questions they ask and how they respond with dignity and forethought and integrity. So I just want to support both of them being appointed to the ZBA this evening. Thank you.

5. Interviews and Appointments

A. <u>Appointment</u>

1) <u>Cable Utility Committee</u> - (4 member vacancies, 2 expire 4/30/22, 2 expire 4/30/23)

Len Segal (applying for a term to expire 4/30/23)

Selectman Guessferd made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to appoint Len Segal as a member of the Cable Utility Committee with a term to expire 4/30/23. Carried 5-0.

2) <u>Zoning Board of Adjustment</u> - (4 alternate member vacancies 2 terms to expire 12/31/21, 1 term to expire 12/31/22, 1 term to expire 12/31/23)

Edward Thompson (applying for alternate member term expiring 12/31/23)

Chairman McGrath explained that Mr. Thompson originally applied for the ZBA alternate term to expire 12/31/21 but now its 12/31/23 and asked would anyone care to make a motion? We have Mr. Thompson, Edward Thompson, he applied for an alternate member term expiring initially, it was 12/31 of '21. Now it's 12/31 of '23. Anyone care to make a motion on it? Selectman Morin stated, I'd like to make a comment. He was recognized by the Chairman and went on to say I will not be voting for Mr. Thompson. When we had our discussion, it was kind of confusing. The gentleman makes a lot of the meetings, Planning, Zoning, Board of Selectmen and the next breath he's telling us he doesn't have enough time because he participates in a lot of things, a lot of organizations, a condo board and things like that. He has to travel and he's already on one committee. We heard that he couldn't make it. That's why he only wanted to be to December. And in my opinion, once he saw where things were going, he jumped his term to end on in '23. So I'm not sure how we can go, I don't have enough time and I have all these reasons why, which were legitimate reasons. But then just a flip of a hat, we can go to '23. That concerns me greatly. We don't want to run into the situation we have now. I'd hate to see us put so many on the board and then end up right back here doing this anyway. I just don't feel that he's going to be able to do it with all the things he's got going at this point. When we talked about the Zoning Board and them being the judges, he answered that it's the neighbors and I gave him the answer that it's RSA's, rules, regulations, laws. And again, he stated, well, the neighbors, well, I don't think he has a good grasp of what that position is, and I will say it again. The Zoning Board acts as judges. Their final decision, and it's very important that the person or the people that serve on that board know what that means. Being a judge, not because the neighbors don't like it. You have a lot of other things you have to look at, and I don't think he was grasping that. The last thing when we talked about conflict interest, I don't think he answered that one well, either. And he even stated, I

expected an answer like that, a question like this, and he couldn't answer it. So that bothers me. Also, he knew that was coming. I would have been prepared for that one. So I won't be voting for him.

Selectman Roy made a motion to appoint Edward Thompson as an alternate member to the Zoning Board of Adjustment with a term to expire 12/31/23, this was seconded by Selectman Gagnon. The Chairman asked if there was any other discussion and Selectman Guessferd was recognized. Selectman Guessferd said Thank you, Madam Chair. My focus. A lot of times most of the time is listening to the citizens of our Town. I would I would agree that he didn't necessarily handle the questions in the best way possible at the point of the point of the interview. However, he has proven to be from everything I can see and the input that we've received, and we've received a number of a number of emails in support of him, a responsible person, if there are areas, we all have areas in our and our expertise where we might be need to be shored up. I get that. I don't know everything there is to know about being a selectman, but I think that he will do a good job in this. In this particular job, he's stepping forward. We don't have a lot of people that are doing that, stepping forward to take these positions. And so those are things that resonate with me in terms of being in support of him. Again, I've seen a lot of support for him and I always again try to listen to the voices of the citizens of this Town. One other point, and Selectman Morin you make a good point about being busy. I don't think there's anybody else in this room who knows how much or as much as I on being busy. I'm another one of those individuals that has a lot on his plate, but I think he got it, that he's going to have to step forward and do the job and, and that's kind of and I thoroughly understand that. And when you go forwards for something you need to kind of be able to balance all those things. I think he can do that. So that's just that's my rationale for supporting him.

Selectman Gagnon was recognized and said quickly, I don't think it needs to be debated. I know we probably all have our thoughts. I figure it necessary to explain that I believe I'm not mistaken that he did ask for the shorter term. But then after, you know, having quite a lot of questions put on him, he actually stood up and accepted the longer term which was presented to him to accept instead of the shorter term. So I thought that was very big of him to come in with thinking you can only do so much. And then being asked, hey, will you do more? And on the spot, he said, Yes, I'll take a longer term. And I personally believe he understands what the legal definition of conflict of interest is. And that's all I had. Thank you.

Seeing no further comments Chairman McGrath said then I'm going to make a comment. I, too, am not going to support Mr. Thompson. For one overriding reason, and it's a very important reason to me. And that was what Selectman Morin indicated when he was asked about a conflict of interest. His response was not only lacking, but it was almost like he was making fun of it. Like, it wasn't important that it's not an important concept to have, and we get sued enough in this town. We get sued enough over cases that really shouldn't be sued over. And if we have someone on the board serving on behalf of the Town in a position of its, it's a pseudo legal position that if you make a, if you make a mistake, that's one thing. If you make a mistake knowing you shouldn't do something and you do it anyway and you put the Town in a position where they're going to be, that we're going to be sued and the taxpayers are going to have to pay for that. I can't support it. I can't support that person and I can't support putting them on a board where we're setting them up to fail and setting them up to fail for the Town. So I too will not be voting for Mr. Thompson, and I had great hope for him when I first met him. But I don't think that I, I don't think we should be. There may be other boards that he could easily serve on and not put the Town in a precarious position, but certainly not the Zoning Board and certainly not the Planning Board, because we all know exactly how he feels about it. So therefore all those in favor signify by saying I by those opposed no nay to an opposition three in favor of motion has carried 3-2, McGrath/Morin opposed. The Chairman then said Just remember this. If we get a lawsuit so Zoning Board.

3) <u>Zoning Board of Adjustment</u> - (4 alternate member vacancies 2 terms to expire 12/31/21, 1 terms to expire 12/31/22, 1 term to expire 12/31/23)

Dean Sakati (applying for alternate member term expiring 12/31/22)

Chairman McGrath asked if there was any discussion? Any motion? <u>Selectman Gagnon</u> <u>made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to appoint Dean Sakati as an alternate</u> <u>member of the Zoning Board of Adjustment with a term to expire 12/31/22</u>. Chairman McGrath asked if there was any discussion. The Chairman then said, I'll have some discussion on this. I will support Mr. Sakati. And the reason why primarily, that I'm supporting him, is that he seemed to get the concept of a conflict of interest, and he made the statement in this room before this Board that he would step down if there was a conflict, if he was challenged. So therefore, I feel I can put them put him in that position because he seems to get it. Any discussion, seeing none a vote was taken. <u>Carried 5-0</u>.

Chairman McGrath asked if any selectman had any items they'd like removed for separate consideration. The Town Administrator asked that item 6D 1&2 be removed for separate consideration.

<u>Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Morin to approve items Consent Items A, B,</u> <u>C, D1, E & F. Carried 5-0.</u>

The Town Administrator was recognized and said Chief Avery would like to come up and say a few words. Chief Avery said thank you, Madam Chair. Good evening members of the Board. Briefly, I just want to address the Board on this donation. As everybody knows, and I'm sure the people behind me are aware, that we I lost a very close friend, sergeant on the Hudson Police Department, Sergeant Donna Briggs, about three weeks ago in a tragic homicide over in Kingston. Members of my department wanted to do something nice in memory of Sergeant Briggs that will forever stay at the building at 1 Constitution Drive began researching and looking into some different ideas and our team, our staff went up to Hudson Quarry and to get a granite bench. We were going to purchase a granite bench and then have it engraved. The management staff up at Hudson Quarry graciously donated a slab of granite that will be made into a bench that will be put in the front of the Hudson Police Department. So I do want to recognize Hudson Quarry. I thank them. I know my entire staff thanks them and I know her family will thank them. Secondly, Hudson Monument down on Dracut Road at Dracut and Sanders. They also came forward and were willing to donate the engraving, which is time consuming and costly, so that the granite costs \$421 dollars and then Hudson Monuments donated basically \$300 dollars of time and effort to engrave this granite slab that again will be placed in front of the Hudson Police Department. I am looking for you to accept the donations of this money, and but I did want to recognize those two businesses for stepping up and helping out myself, her family and the rest of the Hudson Police Department. Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Gagnon to approve consent donations D2 & D3. Carried 5-0.

6. <u>CONSENT ITEMS</u>

- A. <u>Assessing Items</u>
 - 1) Yield Tax Timber Abatement: Map 200, Lot 7, 65 Bush Hill Road
 - 2) Certification of Yield Taxes: Map 105, Lot 017, Sub 004, 197 Robinson Road
 - 3) Current Use Lien Releases: Map 194, Lot 9-5, 146 Standish Lane, Map 194, Lot
 - 9-7, 158 Standish Lane

B. <u>Water/Sewer Items</u>

1) Water Abatement - W-UTL-21-07, Acct.#3508106701

- C. <u>Licenses & Permits & Policies</u> 1) Outdoor Gathering Permit - Road Race - Mill Cities Relay
- D. <u>Donations</u>

\$1,200.00 to be used to purchase/maintain maple tree donation - Benson Park
Donation of a granite bench valued at \$421 from Hudson Quarry, to the Hudson Police Department in Memory of Sgt. Briggs

3) Donation of engraving of the granite bench from Hudson Monuments with a value of \$300, to Hudson Police Department in Memory of Sgt. Briggs

E. <u>Acceptance of Minutes</u>

1) Minutes of September 28, 2021

F. <u>Calendar</u>

- 10/13 7:00 Planning Board Buxton Meeting Room
- 10/14 7:00 Board of Selectmen Budget Review BOS Meeting Room
- 10/14 7:00 Sustainability Committee Buxton Meeting Room
- 10/18 7:00 Traffic Advisory Committee Buxton Meeting Room
- 10/18 7:00 Conservation Commission BOS Meeting Room
- 10/19 7:00 Board of Selectmen Budget Review BOS Meeting Room
- 10/19 7:00 Municipal Utility Committee Buxton Meeting Room
- 10/20 6:00 Library Trustees Hills Memorial Library
- 10/20 7:00 Planning Board Hudson Community Center
- 10/21 7:00 Benson Park Committee HCTV Meeting Room
- 10/21 7:00 Board of Selectmen Budget Review BOS Meeting Room
- 10/25 7:00 Sustainability Committee Buxton Meeting Room
- 10/26 7:00 Board of Selectmen BOS Meeting Room

7. OLD BUSINESS

- A. Votes taken after Nonpublic Session on September 28, 2021
- 1) Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to hire Christos Tufts as a HCTV Camera Operator, and will be classified as a "Regular Special Shift Employee" at the current rate of \$12.50 per hour. Carried 5-0.
- 2) Motion to adjourn at 10:00 p.m. by Selectman Morin, seconded by Selectman Gagnon. Carried 5-0.

B. IT Director Position

The Town Administrator was recognized and said I received or I solicited job descriptions from Municipal Resources who provided me with three recent recruitments that they did for IT Director or IT manager. I also have solicited from MRI, but got to it job director descriptions, one from Goffstown and one from Rochester. I believe these are all emails for you folks last week, so we had an opportunity to look at them. I believe the intent was to take a look at what's out there on job descriptions to see how you may want to modify the town of Hudson's job description. But the ultimate goal of putting the position out for recruitment. So one step at a time, I believe. Chairman McGrath asked any discussion? Selectman Roy was recognized and said Yeah, so, um, I think if I were to start, um, and I think I said this at the last meeting for a minimum gualification, I think that it should be, um, a master's degree preferred but a minimum of a bachelor's degree in computer science and/or related field and a minimum of five years of related experience, preferably in a municipality. Right. So that would be my first suggestion and change. Selectman Morin said my question with the Masters. Can we afford it? Selectman Roy replied, well, I don't know, can we not? Selectman Morin responded no, but can we? No, I don't think. I don't think we're going to be. You know what I mean? Selectman Roy said I just think in this day and age...Selectman Morin said I don't disagree. I don't think we can afford it.

Selectman Gagnon was recognized and said I guess I agree with the three of you. Of course, a master's, I think an I.T. professional is very important in today's world for obvious reasons. It's an ever changing position. So certifications are incredibly important in those kind of roles. And to your concern, although I understand completely, I don't see a negative to adding it to the job description. If we find someone that comes in front of us, that's phenomenal, doesn't have a masters, but is within our price range and is excellent, then we can still say yes to them. So I don't think adding that language in there would potentially hurt us and bypass it if needed. Selectman Morin said I don't mind out there either. I just don't know if we're going to get for what this Town pays people. I don't think we're going to get anybody. Selectman Roy then said but I guess we don't know if we don't ask kind of thing, you know, because it could be somebody that works in Boston and they live in Hudson and then they want to they want a five mile commute instead of a fifty five mile commute, right? So, you know, as willing to be paid for that. Selectman Morin said I just don't want to see us pricing ourselves out. Selectman Roy replied, no, but I don't. And it's not. We're not insisting on a masters. We're saying a bachelor's minimum and a preference for a master's degree.

The Town Administrator said so the wording might say something like bachelor's degree and five years of relevant experience master's degree in information technology preferred. Selectman Roy said Yeah something to that. The Town Administrator said that's pretty much lifted from Goffstown. That way you're not just getting masters degrees. Selectman Roy replied, right, right. Selectman Guessferd said exactly. The Town Administrator asked would that be amenable. Is that that something sounds reasonable? The Chairman said sounds reasonable.

Chairman McGrath asked, anything else? Selectman Guessferd was recognized and said I had one other comment Madam Chair. I didn't see anything in here, and I look I look through all of these and that I didn't see anything that at least just set a knowledge of, I think in today's day and age cybersecurity, I'm thinking that we can add that to the knowledge requirements, perhaps not in, not in the minimum qualifications, but in the knowledge, skills and abilities. Chairman McGrath said I thought I did see that somewhere. I thought I did. Selectman Guessferd said did you? If I missed it, I'm sorry about that. But I know that some of them had. I think at least one of them might have had that, but I just think it's necessary to make sure that we have, you know, that that's part of the description of the responsibilities or the knowledge, skills and ability we talk about town code regulations, SOPs directives, written policies, we talk about operations and functions of windows and related servers. I'm wondering if we could also add in working knowledge of cybersecurity issues or something to that effect.

Chairman McGrath said I think in this day and age we have to. So, you know, I thought that I had seen, I looked at all of these. I thought I saw it somewhere. But I but I also know that our I.T. department is very cognizant of security. Selectman Guessferd said Yes, I agree. Selectman Roy said and I agree, but I still think it sort of needs to be part of the description, right? Chairman McGrath said I don't disagree. I'm just I'm saying I think that they really pay attention to that now, and I thought that I saw it somewhere.

The Town Administrator said so under our job description. B5, it says responsible for security of the Town's computer system, including remote sites, multiple computers manage the security integrity of equipment and files. If you wanted to under the knowledge and skills under number C1 we could add a sentence that says working knowledge of cybersecurity. I mean, that seems to be what I've seen in some of the other ones. That may that may just kind of put a little bit more oomph in there. You do have something in the in the specific duties, but if you wanted to put something in a knowledge and skill you could maybe put a sentence like that if the Board was an amenable. Selectman Guessferd said I think it kind of needs to be emphasized that that's a piece that is something relatively new. The Town Administrator said I think it's something it's really new, but it's definitely of importance. Selectman Guessferd said emphasis because I just know that every year we see more and more regulations at the federal level and at the state and municipal level regarding that, and of course, you know, we we all run into cybersecurity things that occur, whether it's a phishing attempt or things like that. So just I just thought it might be an area we might want to at least put something in. Mr. Malizia asked, is that reasonable under putting it under, C1 just putting that working knowledge of cybersecurity that just puts another emphasis on it.

Selectman Roy said so to Mr. Guessferd' s point, I actually think that whole kind of knowledge, skills and abilities thing we might want to beef up a little. And I look at something like Plymouth's where and it addresses that It says comprehensive knowledge of the operating systems for a wide range of computer operating systems and software applications. knowledge of the computer industry and technology, evolving products, knowledge of various computer languages, Microsoft Office, working knowledge of computer networking, telecommunications. Some of the stuff, Quite frankly, I don't know if we use or not. Microsoft Exchange, Local Area Network and then it says cyber-attack prevention, which I think is what we're talking about. MS Office, Munis, virtual systems. So it's on Page two of the Plymouth, Plymouth, Massachusetts. I think if we if we beefed that up to include all of those things, because that's what we need, you know, somebody that, because it can't be limited to what we have because we don't know if that's what we're going to keep in the future. Right. So we have I think we have to have language that they're going to keep up with that stuff so that if we are going to transition to another type of service or program, that that they're able to be able to do that.

Selectman Gagnon was recognized and said I'm scanning through some of the other examples, and I'm not seeing it, so it may not be relevant, but you know, to the point of training, would having a section in there for ongoing training be appropriate now to Mr. Morin's point, you know, that would obviously cost money to pay for their ongoing training. But you know, in a in a field that, you know, a move so quickly I kind of think keeping training up to date is probably the most important for that type of role. If we could afford it, again, but not do it, we can put it in there and not do it. But would it be necessary to put in a section saying, you know, being available and amenable to ongoing training, whether it's every six months, once a year, so forth? Attend meetings, conferences, workshops and trainings. Oh, so there is actually under Goffstown. There is an embedded one that says attend meetings, conferences, workshops, training sessions, review publications, materials to become and remain current. I think that's actually a more delicate way of saying is remaining current, I think, is a top priority. Chairman McGrath asked Steve, do you know if they do that now? The Town Administrator replied, yes, they do. The whole group does it. It's a continuous process. I mean, we don't have a bunch of ragtag team members in the IT Department. They seem to be really... just give me a minute. They seem to be, from my perspective, they seem to be up on their training and all of the needs of this Town. It seems to me I'm not IT expert, but I worked at BAE I had plenty of training there and I've gotten it here through emails and other things. Selectman Roy asked is that something that's in their budget is? Because I know, Lisa's Miss Nute have Talked about it before, but do we?

Is that something the Town supports financially? The Town Administrator replied, yes. She actually does training for all employees of the town and her Town. Selectman Roy relied, right but in specific to her staff? The Town Administrator replied they're not exempt from it or immune from it. And they train more than probably the rest of us. The rest of us do. Selectman Roy said I guess, they do stuff specifically for IT correct? Training? To keep up to date. Not just the regular. They do the stuff for the rest of us. The Town Administrator replied, they do IT stuff yes, and then they do the stuff for the rest of us.

Selectman Morin was recognized and aid, I don't think Mr. Gannon, Selectman Gannon's suggestions a bad thing. Other departments have training requirements in their policies too. Adding it in it's not going to hurt anything and it just backs us up that they have to get training. I don't think that's a problem. The Town Administrator asked, could you just point out where you saw that again? Selectman Roy replied its Goffstown, its page two of three. And it's like the second bullet point. The first bullet point in the second page, attends meetings, conferences.

Selectman Gagnon was recognized and said if I could just add quickly to that to Madam Chairman's point. You know, I think our IT Department is fabulous for sure. And I mean, are we trying to degrade them? But I think they are doing so much that it would be nice to have their job description match what they're doing. So in the event that maybe someone else takes a position and falls back and doesn't want to do as much as they are right now, we can hold them to their job description. But right now they're going above and beyond what their job description is. I think Mrs. Roy's point is just making sure the job description highlights everything they are actually doing for us, so we get someone in a similar role doing similar things.

The Town Administrator said so just to circle back, we could add that section. And then you want to add just verbatim the Plymouth knowledge section to this job description. I get that before I like that, that's my note. But that's just what I make sure that's what you want to do. Selectman Roy replied right.

Selectman Guessferd said one other small point, I don't know if we need to elaborate on more, but we do say in here they coordinate liaison with other departments, with the School Department, and I was noticing in one of the other ones here that was Rochester, where they used the term cultivate and expand the relationship. When and where does it expand the relationship with the school department information technology staff to leverage potential savings? And this is one thing we're doing anyway, right? We're doing now. From collaboration and system sharing. I like I like that part of it as well to work. What do you think about that Chairman Gasdia? Chairman Gasdia was replied yeah, no. I guess it sort of goes to Selectman Gagnon's point. I think that's something we're doing already. And if you know, as long as it doesn't price us out of the Market. Everything you're saying here is phenomenal, but as someone who hires IT people nonstop as part of my job every day, the more you put in that, that price tag does go up, but we're doing it anyway. So if you put it in, there's no harm to it.

Selectman Guessferd said see the phrase it says to leverage, because I think we do say it in their already. Liaison to department heads, town boards and committees Rogers Moral Library IT and the school department for matters related to municipal government IT. We could add and leveraging, you know, the leverage potential savings, I don't know. You know, it's something that I could I can if we can fit it in there. I think it's a good statement to make because it kind of shows that collaboration piece. Chairman McGrath asked Selectman Guessferd, say that again, Selectman Guessferd said where it says so we talk about here lays on to the different departments. I won't read every word of it. But we could add and leverage potential savings from collaboration and system sharing. Something to that effect.

Selectman Morin asked Chairman Gasdia, do you have anything like that in your job description for IT? Chairman Gasdia replied I don't believe that we do. I can't say definitively. But I don't believe so.

Selectman Morin said I'd like to see it on their side if we're going to do it. I mean, if it's going to work, it's got to work on both sides.

Selectman Guessferd said absolutely. Selectman Roy said right. But it's got to start somewhere, right? Selectman Morin said No, no. But I don't want to, you know what I mean? And then we put this there and then we get nothing. Selectman Roy said you know, we're trying to update something that was written 15 years ago, right? So in an ever kind of evolving area, you know? Selectman Morin said I just think we're putting stuff in there that's never going to happen. We've seen it before. Selectman Roy said well, it's never going to happen if we don't. Selectman Morin replied, I understand it's not. Looking at all of them, except one has bachelor's degrees. Just I just think we're going to get it for what we pay.

Selectman Gagnon was recognized and said just a yes or no question Madam Chair. Does this individual need a clearance of any sort? Confidentiality clearance because they work with Fire Chief and Police Chief? Chairman McGrath asked for the town of Hudson. Selectman Gagnon replied yes, ma'am. Chairman McGrath replied, I don't believe so. Selectman Roy said there's a background check in. Chairman McGrath replied, yeah, I know. But oh, you know, BAE you need some sort of a security clearance, whether its top secret, secret clearance there's other there's one below the secret. The Town Administrator read maintain confidentiality. Carry out complex oral written instructions. Selectman Gagnon replied does that need to be an official passing of a certification having sort of a final clearance? Selectman Roy replied yeah, I think I don't think that that's how it works. Selectman Morin said the Police Chief can answer that on reference to that stuff. Chief Avery came forward and said certainly. So if and when we do go ahead with an IT Director, whomever that is, if it's somebody from outside this organization, we do it for other positions here, we will conduct a thorough background investigation for the Town, obviously. And as part of our working here right, you're going to sign off on all that confidentiality. And it takes time to trust this person, whomever it is coming from the outside. Would we throw them right into helping us with some sense of investigations? Probably not. Not into that relationship is formed, but we will do a background check on behalf of the Town. And obviously, I know we've done it before and speaking with the town administrator on different positions here, we'll call the local police departments and start with a general background. Selectman Gagnon replied, okay and there isn't an actual like certification program to say I am certified for confidential. Selectman Roy replied, it's not like on the federal side. Chief Avery added there's no clearance systems like it is at BAE or down in Devin's.

The Town Administrator asked, so with those amendments, are we ready to post a position? The Board agreed. The Town Administrator then said so do we have <u>a motion to post the position of IT</u> <u>Director and to hire Municipal Resources to conduct the recruitment for the position? Selectman</u> <u>Morin made this motion, seconded by Selectman Gagnon. Carried 5-0.</u>

8. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>

A. Public Hearing - Sewer Infiltration & Inflow Donation

The Town Administrator explained at your last meeting you approved a sewer allocation for Unifirst that was a company that's going down in the Sagamore Industrial Park. They graciously agreed to donate \$70,000 to the Town for our inflow and infiltration program. That's for the sewer system to make sure it's as tight as it can so that we get the maximum that we are entitled to. So with that, we have a public hearing to accept the \$70,000 donation that's been scheduled. It's been advertised. So I recommend you open the hearing.

Chairman McGrath opened the public hearing at 7:43 p.m. and asked is there anyone here who wishes to speak in favor or opposed? Seeing no one present for public input, the Chairman closed the public hearing at 7:43 p.m. <u>Selectman Gagnon made a motion, seconded by Selectman</u> <u>Guessferd to accept a donation of \$70,000 from UniClean Laundry for Infiltration and Inflow program</u> <u>related projects and equipment. Carried 5-0.</u>

B. Public Hearing - Inspectional Services Fee Schedule

Chairman McGrath recognized Chief Buxton who said Good evening, Madam Chair, members of the Board, certainly the Inspectional Services fees have been posted for a little bit, 10 days now, right? So certainly been monitoring a couple of emails that were forwarded to me from the Board members and social media accounts. Just wanted to make sure that we're offering some clarity regarding a couple of comments this evening. I don't know we'll answer all the questions, but just trying to make sure we get as much information as possible.

So one was the requirement for the new hot water heater costing for a \$30 fee. And basically, what we're attempting to do is level the playing field across the board for all hot water heaters. So we have one company in particular in Town that does a lot of hot water heater replacements. Ok. And if they come in on Monday and they're going to X Y Z address and they're replacing an electric hot water heater by the state building code, they're required to get a plumbing permit, which is an automatic \$75 fee for that one appliance. If he comes in on Wednesday and he's going to X Y Z address to replace a hot water heater and he is dealing with a gas appliance, he gets a gas appliance permit, which is the requirement under the state code, and that is \$30. So we're attempting to level the playing field and just charge a straight \$30 across the board, whether it's an electronic, electric or a gas hot water heater. So we're just lowering the price on one side and keeping it equal on the other same number of inspections. There's actually more work to inspect on a gas appliance than on the electronic hot water heater. So we're just trying to level that that playing field. Selectman Roy was recognized and said

So you you said that those were state codes? Do they set the rate or do we have that? Chief Buxton replied, No, we set the rate. That's a requirement of the inspection as part of the state code. We enforce that. So the \$30.00 fee is just basically an attempt to have one fee versus two fees.

Chief Buxton continued saying, going from there seem to be some discussion in regards to accessory structures. And basically what we're again trying to do there was no adjustment on the fee at all. We were just calling out than it from a definition standpoint that accessory structures included decks, sheds and porches straight up. So that was the requirement. And then the last piece was the new solar panel permit. And again, that was a streamlining thing where we just said instead of going through the whole electrical permit process, we just came up with a specific solar permit fee and specific permit. That was the attempt that, you know. So those were the three hot button issues that seem to be gaining some traction. Wanted to offer some clarity. I'm not sure that that answers all the questions, but you know, as we'll hear during the public hearing, I'm sure there's a couple of other things and I'll take some notes and go from there. But certainly that is nobody's contacted the department or the division. But those were a couple of things just following the social media trail and a couple of emails that the Board got because you set the fees that were forwarded to us.

Selectman Gagnon was recognized and said Chief, can you explain that the last comment you made, you said solar panels used to get an electrical installation charge and now you're kind of separating it for an electrical installation and a solar installation. What is the electrical installation charge? How much is that? Forgive me, it may be in front of you. Chief Buxton replied hold on, hold on. Solar arrays going from zero to .15 cents per square foot. Selectman Gagnon replied, Ok. But what was it not considering solar? What was the solar before this? Chief Buxton replied It was just a straight electrical, so it could have been hold on one second I got that information here... \$75.

Ok. All right, so the solar installation is flexible based on how big it is and the electrical installations, a flat \$75.00, so you might actually have a cheaper fee. Chief Buxton replied you might have a smaller fee depending on what you're doing. And that's, you know, it's a pretty involved process from the structural review, depending on where you're putting it on your house. If you're putting it on the roof, there's a requirement to do a structural review by the code and then the electrical installation itself.

Chairman McGrath asked if there were any other questions. Seeing none she said I'm just going to read one thing into the record. It's the only one that's in the packet. We got an email from a resident. I'm not going to read her name because I don't know that that's appropriate. But she just it's a one line email, "just my opinion. But this doesn't seem like a good time to raise prices, especially when one is on a fixed income and inflation is on the rise already." So that's one that came in through the email system here. The Chairman then said, so I'll open the public hearing at 7:49 p.m. anyone wish to get up and speak on this matter?

Peter Lanzillo, 12 Blackstone Street, said Madame Chairwoman and members, thank you for listening to me. I have a problem with fees. It seems like the building fees are a fee paid when a person wants to buy permission from the Town to work on his or her property. I guess they're not call taxes. The property owner could say I don't want to

Do that and not buy permission. But of course, if you don't get permission. Eventually, property will fall into disrepair. I therefore feel that raising these fees is not in the best interest of the Town or its property owners. Now, if the Board feels it needs more money for inspection purposes or whatnot, they could go before the voters and ask in the proper procedure to have those monies raised. Remember, if it walks like a duck and quacks like a duck, it's a duck. And if the government demands a fee and the person sees his money separated from him, it's a tax. And that's just my personal feeling, and I just wanted to share that with you.

Hello again, Mike Tranfaglia, 24 Woodcrest Drive. So I'm looking at this. I notice that the residential roof fee would go from \$50.00 down to zero. That's going in the right direction. However, the rest of these fees and thank you, Chief Buxton, for giving us the oil burner explanation, but the rest of these fees are either non-existent and you're asking for them or they are going up in some manner. And of course, this goes from residential to commercial as well. And commercial, of course, is in a few of these cases a lot higher. And to what Mr. Lanzillo just said is, this is, you know, wrong time to do this because of the fact that we've got so many things going on right now with inflation and other things that are holding people back financially. And the Town really needs to consider that this should be probably, like you said, brought forth to the Town, to the citizens. Right now it's there. There's a lot of items on here. I don't know. It looks like it was about 15-ish right now, but I'm just really hoping you'll reconsider this and think of a better way to move forward with this instead of raising fees or taxes or anything else. That's all.

Stacy Paradise, 4 Meadow Drive. As someone who just recently replaced their water heater and had to have my basement cleaned, then I had to pay for the plumber. Then I did buy the new water heater and now I have to have, and I didn't know that there were fees, so I didn't have anybody come inspect it. So I might need to have somebody come inspect it now because I didn't know that I was supposed to do that. I just called my plumber and said, there's water in my basement come help me and I've replaced my heater. So I just think it's a lot financially when you have all those things piling on top of each other to add more fees. So I'm against raising those fees. Thank you.

Seeing no further public input Chairman McGrath closed the public hearing at 7:53 p.m. She then said is there a motion to approve the new Inspectional Services fee schedule as recommended by the Fire Chief and Deputy Fire Chief Tice? Selectman Gagnon said I'll make that motion for discussion. Selectman Roy seconded for discussion. Selectman Gagnon said thank you, Madam Chair. May I bother you, sir? Yes. So to respond to some of our residents' concerns, I took a few notes. They talked about the installation of a water heater, gas and electric. Can you confirm for me, I might not be clear either, does the company who does the installation of said water heater either or pay that inspection fee? Or is it upon the residents to go and do that? Chief Buxton replied, so I'm

going to use the woman from Meadow Drive that was just here. If the installation was done by a licensed plumber, they're obligated under their license to get a permit from the Town, which they would have. That would have been a requirement, which they would have known the inspection fee. I don't know that particular scenario. There is an opportunity under the code. So if there's an emergency repair on a weekend, which does happen, there is an ability for the plumber to come in and do the work and then get the permit the next day to make sure the installation was done correctly.

Selectman Gagnon followed up saying, Ok, so if if it's done through the proper channels, you know, hiring a professional they're trained to know how the permit process works, and they probably include that in their installation costs. Chief Buxton replied, I'm sure they do. Selectman Gagnon then said If an individual want to replace their water heater on their own, not having a professional, I mean, can you give us an example of how that might play out? Chief Buxton replied, so in the state of New Hampshire, there is an ability to do a lot of things in your home as long as you are living in your home. So as long as you're not utilizing it and you're not a landlord, right? So if you're living in a single family residence and you wanted to do electrical work or you wanted to do some baseline plumbing work that you can do that on your own and you kind of live through that process here and come down to Town Hall we'll work with you through the permitting process. A couple of things you cannot do the service on your own home and you cannot do gas work in those specific pieces that are called out in the state codes and we're the enforcement agency for that.

Selectman Gagnon then said Ok, thank you. Two more questions. You know, do you find that the inspections are not just I mean, we've talked about taxes and fees tonight, you know, it is money going to the Town for whatever you want to call it. But can you can you explain the value of those inspections? I mean, obviously the Town is making money because we're sending a professional to do a job. But can you explain further what the value of those inspections are doing for the homeowner if for, say, they did it themselves, if they did electrical themselves or some kind of construction themselves, right? Why should they pay that fee? What value are they getting out of it other than just doing what's being told? Chief Buxton replied, well, they're making sure that the work that was done in their home meets the standard at the time. So it meets a state building code as we sit here today. Now, tomorrow, if the state building code changed, there would be a thing on record that said that the water heater was installed on such and such a date, and it met this requirement. Ok, and then they wouldn't be held to that next standard. Where we run into this quite a bit is when folks go to actually sell their property. So you have probably one of the glaring examples is the finished basement. So you move into a home, you have an unfinished basement over the years, you have a couple of kids and you need a little extra space, so you throw a room in your basement and that's a common, common thing. You then down the road, go to downsize because it's a different part of your life and you go to sell your property. And now when they come in to do your home inspection, they figure out that there's an extra room in the house that was never inspected and it shows up on your inspection report. And most of the times, even some of the mortgage companies will not write the mortgage for a section of the home that was not built to a standard and was not inspected. So then we're dealing with and we've dealt with code enforcement more times than we probably want to talk about the process of getting folks to the point where they actually have current and active CO's for their homes because they do work on their own.

Selectman Gagnon responded saying thank you. And the last question, what fees, I know one of the residents spoke about fees being new, that new fees are being added from my layman's understanding here. I thought the fees were kind of just transforming from one style to another or being split into two different titles. Sure. Can you clarify if there are new fees? Chief Buxton replied, so if you look at I don't know if you have the fee schedule in front of you, and I'll just run down this. So basically, we basically said that the residential billing permit, there is a minimum fee now of \$30. And basically what was happening is you come in and you weren't covering the cost of having an inspector come to the home. Right. So this is a user scenario. You should be trying to generate enough fees to offset that section of the operating budget. Right? And that's what we tried to do. We don't try to. We're not making a profit here, right? So that is the change there. We also increased the

residential remodel and repair that. That's just the industry median cost in this area. Residential roof, we weren't getting the permits anyway. And what we said was there's no inspection that was taking place. So why do we have the permits? We got rid of it. The Chief went on to say, Demolition There's a requirement for asbestos abatement and reviewing those reports now. So that went from 25 to 50. Electrical temporary, so if you're building a home, there's a there's a requirement by public service in the utility that before they energize that temporary that you are out there for the inspection. So there's an electrical fee now there's an actual permit for the temp. Plumbing, same thing. Solar array, we talked about that one already. The residential hot water heater. We talked about that one. Temporary trailer example I would use is down on I think it was Fairway Drive where we had an explosion in a home over there. Insurance company comes in and plops a modular on the front lawn for the family to live in while the home's repaired. There's a connection for, permanent connection for electrical, plumbing and sewer. All right for that temporary home to be able to utilize. So there's three inspections that take place there. We're basically talking about an opportunity for a \$30 connection fee and an inspection because we're going out to make those three pieces.

And then probably the biggest change, it really starts dealing with the four thousand or more plus square foot commercial buildings. So if you have a commercial building that's being built in this community and it's over 4,000 square feet, you were paying the same \$275.00 dollars for your permit fee. As somebody that was building, you know, a building that's \$500,000 square feet there's a lot more inspections that are required for the larger building than a 4,000 square foot building. So we basically said, how do we leverage that and make sure that we're getting a fair market value for the work that's being accomplished? So that's where that fee came up with. And then commercial, electrical, temporary and plumbing, same thing. Justification as before, and then the fire alarm per unit prices. That was an increase just based on market value. These fees hadn't been updated in five years. So this isn't something we do every year. This is a five year rotation that we go through. Gas, Commercial gas burning went up. That was the average in the area. And then you run into the square footage again, oil burners and tank removals and temporary trailers again and then a commercial tent. There's a requirement for commercial tent now. So if you're putting up for a wedding venue or something like that, there's a requirement to go out to check the flame retardant, the structural support. The egress is in and out of the tent and that's a new requirement, of the state fire marshal. New last three years.

Selectman Guessferd was recognized and said just a simple guestion. I know it's probably a simple question. So if these fees aren't approved for change, what's the consequence for the Town? Chief Buxton replied, you're not recovering what you're spending. So if I'm in business and I'm going to use the 4,000 square foot building here for a second or the 500,000 square foot building. We have an inspector that needs to go there every day. We burn through \$275.00 dollars of value pretty quickly. Ok. I think it's my job to bring in those glaring issues to your attention, and we tried to make some adjustments that seemed to make sense to us. Tried to, you know, we hear the contractors at the counter every day. The hot water heater was a glaring thing after our last upgrade. You know, so we just said, OK, we'll see when the opportunity comes forward. And this was the time to do it. Looking in forecasting what's coming to this community for construction, like there's some liabilities there in regards to having inspectors time being utilized in one site, for long periods of time. And how's that get covered? Selectman Guessferd replied, so you would say eventually it's got to get paid somehow, right? And I would think ultimately one way or the other that we have to pay for it through our town budget taxes one way or the other. Chief Buxton then said so I just the math here for a second. Ok, so the Inspectional Services area upstairs doesn't just provide building a life safety inspection. Ok, so it does building and fire and foster care and a lot of public education stuff comes out of that one area. It's a very busy group. The total budget for that area is just shy of \$500,000. Ok. We're generating a revenue of about \$379,000. Ok. Salary and benefits for that area is about \$450,000 dollars. So if you take that on a percentage, we're trying to we're trying to say about 90% of their day is spent doing inspections, going out. We should be trying to recover that. If you lower the revenue somewhere along the line, you're going to either not have as many staff members to continue the customer service or you're going to pay for it somewhere else, which is probably taxation, right? Selectman Guessferd replied, okay. Thanks for explaining that, Chief.

Chairman McGrath asked, does anybody else have questions? Seeing none, she then said I have one. Can you explain what the implication is for people not getting permits? And I don't mean that that the Town may find out about it and go in and fine you for not having it. What are the safety implications for not getting? Chief Buxton replied, I'll give you probably the most glaring and simple answer that I can. I believe it was just south of retired Selectman Coutu store on the River Road at a new store that was being put up. Plumber went in and was putting an HVAC unit in the attic space. He's not the carpenter, he's the HVAC guy. He's putting a furnace in, right? He cut through six trusses. It was truss construction. He cut through six trusses and left it that way and set the unit Ok? Inspector goes in, finds that flags it. We not only put out a safety reminder internally for us, but it also goes to the contractor. You have a much, you know, you've completely lost the support mechanism of the truss by cutting one of the cords. He cut six of them. So you put a snow load, you put a firefighter, you put a maintenance guy up on the roof like what's going to happen? Like maybe year one? Maybe not a lot. Year two, three four you're gonna have some issues. So the quality of work and what you're really getting and making sure the code is met is the big deal. That's what you drive for.

Chairman McGrath said I think what I was, what I was trying to get at. It's not about trusses because I'm not a builder and I don't know how many other people in this room are builders that would understand trusses and what the importance is. But I understand, like fire safety. If you know you were talking about a house down off of very fairway, I drive you and there was an explosion. And I remember because you called me because I was in charge at the time. And that scared the living davlights out of me. Not because I did, not because I ever did any of that. What you had explained. but I couldn't imagine other people and how they may have experienced some of that and then had an explosion in their house, which the other thing that you told me, I'll never forget it, is that you that the explosion knocked the house off of its foundation. That's how powerful it was. So try to speak a little bit of an explanation like that. Chief Buxton replied, so one of the pieces and if you look at the fire code and you look at the life safety code talks about egress, I'll go back to my basement example. A lot of people put rooms in their basements. That is a popular place and, you know, guilty as charged. As a kid, I had a basement bedroom, right? It was four of us. We needed space, right? So that's where you went. There was no secondary means of egress to get out of there. It was one way down, one way up, right? And a lot of those things are found when we actually do inspections. You know, somebody put a put an illegal bedroom in their basement or an auxiliary living unit in their basement, right? And it comes up on we see it all the time with the realtors. So that's probably the biggest piece is the egress piece and then the construction stuff. Like so gas appliances, I'll go back to that. You know, we have CO calls all the time in this community, probably a couple hundred a year. Improper ventilation, it runs too long. You're not getting the air make up that you need to make sure that the unit is burning efficiently. That all gets checked by the inspector when they come out. So that's important.

Chairman McGrath said so it's all for people's safety, more than to punish them because it's I mean, that's really I mean, I think that some people think that and I'll use my father, who's long since passed, but that's what he would think that it was a punishment by the Town that he'd have to get a permit for something that, you know, may end up causing harm. And so I think it's important to try and convey that aspect of trying to come up with a fee structure. And it's not to punish people, it's to really save them and save them, you know, save their lives. Chief Buxton agreed.

Selectman Roy was recognized and asked are there any opportunities for the fees to be waived? Chief Buxton replied saying it's a great question. Under the authority, that would be your purview. So somebody, so right now, the only authority that I have to waive fees would be for the municipality or the School District. I don't have the ability to waive fees for anybody else without coming to you folks first. Chairman McGrath asked, does that answer your question? Selectman Roy replied, It does, it does. I just think that, you know, there might be circumstances and I'll use a hot water heater or somebody may have say, inherited house. They pay the taxes. They don't have much left over after hot water heater breaks. They fix it themselves or replace it themselves. And you know that \$30.00 dollars really might just be a bridge too far, right? So I just didn't know if there was anything. Chairman McGrath said maybe we could add something like that into the ordinance that that for extraordinary circumstances, financial circumstances that we could waive fees, but we'd have to have a discussion about that. Now is not the time to do that. But I think that that's probably a, you know, especially based on the email that that we that I read into the record earlier. So it may be something that we can discuss, but in the meantime, we've got this before us. Seeing no further comments <u>Selectman Gagnon made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to approve the new Inspectional Services Fee Schedule as recommended by the Fire Chief and Deputy Fire Chief Tice.</u> <u>Carried 5-0.</u>

C. Hudson Police Department - Highway Safety Grant Acceptance

Chief Avery was recognized and said thank you Madam Chair, members of the Board of Selectmen. I'm here before you tonight requesting you five to accept several grants they're all encompassed through the New Hampshire Highway Safety Project, Title 2022. These grants focus on DWI enforcement, speed enforcement, distracted driving, texting while driving, traffic control violations. Pretty much all encompassed throughout Town. And as you know that we get over the last three weeks, I've been absolutely inundated with directed patrol requests throughout this entire town, from one end of town as far north as Breakneck road and as far south is off of Dracut Road. So the patrolmen are out there. They get called away a lot to answer calls for service. But these grants why they're important because the officers are out there working them, are not responding to any other calls for service unless we had, God forbid, a shooting or a very violent case going down and we need it all hands on deck. So we are asking for the acceptance of \$16,091. This money will be spread out throughout the next year, which will expire September 30th, 2022.

Chairman McGrath said I just have a comment. I'm happy to see this grant. I'm happy to accept this grant. And you haven't gotten any phone calls from me about enforcement, but I've been tempted because there's a lot down my area that that I could be calling about.

Chief Avery then said this does not cover our and we know we have an issue now with the four wheelers and dirt bikes out on the power lines. We are attempting to address this. Our side by side will be out there this weekend just for everybody's attention patrolling all parts of the power lines and Town conservation land. We have received tons of complaints. You have to have permission from the land owner to drive on this land and I can't say it enough, but the officers will be out there. If you ride you ride at your own risk. If you get stopped, you may get your vehicle towed.

Selectman Guessferd made a motion, seconded by Selectman Roy to authorize the Hudson Police Department to accept the Hudson Highway Safety Grant awarded by the New Hampshire Highway Safety Agency and the amount of \$16,091 beginning October 1st 2021 through September 30th of 2022. Carried 5-0.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said I know it's not on the agenda but We just got it today and it kind of relates to what we're discussing. Your community questionnaire you send out, traffic was one of the highest? Chief Avery replied yes, absolutely. We sent out a survey several weeks ago asking for the public's input onto how we're doing as a police department. You know, several questions regarding professionalism, our appearance, the officer's attitude, but we're looking for concerns in the community as well in areas that we need to better target or handle or patrol. And as Selectman Morin just pointed out, traffic, speeding vehicles, distracted driving, aggressive driving was among the top by far of concerns for residents. Especially in some back roads. That really surprised me that vehicles were speeding. You just never think to go and run radar on some of these back roads. I contacted every person that put their name for me to contact throughout the last week and a half two weeks, and we have set up directed patrols. And again, this will help us the grants that we just spoke about.

D. Hudson Fire Department - Ambulance Replacement Program

Chairman McGrath recognized Chief Buxton who said so good evening again. Thank you for the opportunity to meet with you this evening. I wanted to really open up tonight's discussion with you surrounding our replacement program for our ambulances. So currently, the Department runs three front line ambulances, and that program went into place in the early 1990s by Chief Brian Mason, where we started this replacement process when at that point in time, we ran two out of the three ambulances out of Central Station and when ran one primary and the other to a backup, OK? And in the replacement process was a nine year life cycle. And so you would buy a new ambulance every three years. And we had a capital reserve fund that was set up put a little money in each year until I think it was three years ago when we ran into DRA's judgment that we couldn't have that in the operating budget anymore, so we had to revisit how we were doing capital reserve funding. In the process really works somewhat well for us until recent times. And what do I mean by that? The average cost of an ambulance in the early 1990s was \$150000, and we thought, you know that we were spending a lot of money. You know, an ambulance that we'll see tonight when we start talking about the bid is a little north of \$300,000 in 2021. Ok. And what we started talking about as staff was like, how are we going to level the playing field here? Because some of the organizational changes that we've made is we said, hey, we put the squad into place to take some mileage off of the large fleet. Ok. And that program is running very well. We have the ambulances running primary within their response districts. All three of them and their response districts and the north, the south and the center of town, and handling the call volume there as best they can. But that call volume in the early nineties was, I think, in '96, when I departed to go to the City of Nashua for a few years, I think we did 2,250 calls I think the number was OK. We're doing over 3,000 EMS calls today. A year that call number in 1996 was total for the department, you know, and I know Selectman Morin, his head is like, Yeah, I've lived this, you know? But the reality is our workload has really started to increase. And what we find is by the time we hit year five, our ambulances are completely out of warranty. So our drive trains are already over 100,000 miles. We're starting to see the motors that are starting to deregulate. So how do we leverage that when you start looking now at a cost of \$300,000 for an ambulance? Ok, so what we'd like to do is move forward with a leasing program very similar to what we did with the large fleet and go to re-mounting of the modules. So the box on the back of the truck, OK, and just I'm using simple terms here just to make sure we're talking about what we're removing. So the module is the back and not the cab portion of the truck and that will get remounted from chassis to chassis. The same thought process to what we're doing with the squad truck. Ok? We're taking the body off the squad and it goes on another chassis at the five year mark. Ok. So when we looked at that, we said, OK, how do we get that accomplished? Well, we would buy instead of buying one ambulance tonight, we would buy two. That would be the first step. And then in two years, we'd come back and buy another two and really get to a point where we maintain now four ambulances instead of three. And the fleet division would have a backup to be able to put into service for special events, high school football games. And oh, help us balance out the mileage and the service on the vehicles, and really provide us an opportunity to leverage a more even spreading of the work. All right, and move the ambulances around. If we lose one ambulance right now and we go down to two, the department is almost in crisis mode. We really are. Call volume demands three ambulances available every day of the year. Ok? When you remove one, now we start relying on mutual aid and. We're bringing in either an ambulance from the City of Nashua or we're bringing an ambulance from Pelham or Windham or Londonderry to give us a hand and pick up that workload. That also turns into a longer response times, different fee structure for patient care. I can always tell when we've had City of Nashua ambulance in town. It's a pretty good chance I'm going to hear from a resident that got their bill. OK because their fees are higher than ours are. All right, they're a private entity or a publicly owned ambulance EMS company. So we would move to a process of remounting ambulances, remounted modules and very similar, just like we're doing with the squad truck. When I first looked at this concept, we said, OK, how does that leverage out and what's a savings potential going to be? I added in your document this evening that shows two ambulances over 20 years what that would look like. I think the savings was a little north of \$800,000. You know, and said, OK, that's going to help us leverage and keep our trucks newer and serviceable and go from there. The biggest question that

comes to mind and Selectman Morin and I have had this conversation like, what does that mean for the module? What happens when you go take the module off the truck and you put it on another chassis? The company is going through a structural review and reviewing all the electronics, and we walk out the door with another 25 year warranty, structurally, on the on the module and the electrical system gets an upgrade of another 10 years. So we're walking out with a brand new warranty, just like it was built from scratch, walking out the door. So that opportunity is there to now leverage that and move that forward. I want to be crystal clear on a couple of things. The revolving fund or the EMS revolving fund was put in a place approximately three years ago. I think now OK. And we bring in just north of \$800,000 in ambulance fees. 50% of those fees go into the EMS revolving fund to support projects like this. So this is not something that is hitting the tax rate or something that goes in the warrant. This is being paid for out of user fees to keep the system moving forward. The fund balance is there to get that accomplished. And from a service standpoint, I think you can all recognize this in your own vehicles at home. You have a much easier time maintaining your vehicles within the first three to five years than you do year's five to 10. Right? And what does that look like? It is not just the truck running down the road, driving down the road. I want you to think about that truck driving down the road with a patient and now two attendants in the back responding the hospital, you know, in the weight of that truck swaying from side to side and that stress that gets put on that frame, the braking system, the drive train and all those things. We think this is a reasonable approach and certainly believe that this would help us be more efficient and successful moving forward. So I'll give you that for consideration. I'm certainly willing to answer any questions that you might have before we go to the next, but that is the adjustment that we think we would like to see.

Selectman Gagnon was recognized and said you mentioned the word lease in that statement. But then you talked about, you know, kind of buying. So I got a little loss of knowing what a basic car lease is. Where does that come into play? Are we leasing these trucks? Chief Buxton replied, so what we would do is we would lease the first two units for four years. We would pay. There would be an interest charge of depending on which way you go, it's about 2.7% percent. So, so the interest rate is relatively low. This is the same model that we utilize with a large fleet starting nine years ago today. So, you know, this is really a process that we've been following. You basically buy into the theory that you're going to have a checkbook payment that is consistent instead of having peaks and valleys around the system. Ok? By affording the opportunity to go with the two on the front end and doing the lease process, you're obviously spreading the payments out over four years and then you would do the same with the next two. But then you would have the opportunity for the EMS revolving fund to continue to stockpile money. So year five, you're sending one unit out that's approximately \$180,000 dollars, goes out, gets a new chassis, gets structural looked at and comes back as a new unit. You pay for that cash and you move forward from there. So it's a stepping system where you step in with the lease and then it goes away. Selectman Gagnon asked almost like a Lease to buy, then? Chief Buxton replied Yeah, OK, you're we're designing our own in the front end where we're literally leasing the vehicle lease, purchasing the vehicle. Selectman Gagnon then said but then you do major construction for five years to fix it back up. So you're doing more to a lease than, you normally would. Ok, and the last question is, you talk about the cab on the back that you keep plopping it. Well, that obviously must have a lifetime as well. And I know you can you can re inspect and you can add new wires, but eventually I think it's going to fall apart. So the cost of a whole new cabin so well, you're seeing that tonight at \$300,000. That's a new ambulance. Guilford, Connecticut has their entire fleet they run. I think its five ambulances. They've been doing this since the early 80s. They have one box down there that when we're looking at this, they joked around. They hadn't even painted the thing, right? Like, you could run a white ambulance. So they just kept moving it, you know, and structurally it continued to move forward. So we had that conversation today. We're certainly not looking to degrade what we have our responders responding in the service we're providing. We're just trying to find a way to level the playing field to make sure long term we're successful. Selectman Gagnon replied, Okay. I have a lot of faith in your work, for sure. This is very complicated, so I put some trust in what you're presenting us. That's all. Thank you.

Selectman Roy was recognized and said so the Selectmen Gannon's point, do you when you have to upgrade one of the systems inside that ambulance, you know how often, I guess, how often does that

happen? What is? I know there's a lot of systems in this and a variety of costs, but. Chief Buxton replied so one of one of the major things that happens with the ambulance that we're proposing this evening and this is one of the maintenance issues, is the air conditioning/HVAC system is actually external to the box. So when you look at the front of the box, there'll be a bracket that has the HVAC on the outside. Currently on the ambulances that we're trading in, the HVAC is actually internal to the rig that that becomes problematic. You know, the bulb is mounted, you know, half a foot from the HVAC unit and you're not getting air on the other end because it's just as it gets tired. It's not blowing as hard, right? This has the opportunity to peel it back to the walls. It's seamless construction. What do I mean by that? The floor of the ambulance itself is built like a big pan. There were no seams in there at all. We theoretically could take a garden hose in the back of the ambulance from a decontamination standpoint and not worry about getting water in any seams anywhere. In our business that's a big deal from a decontamination standpoint. We're not going to have the laminate coming off of things. There's no glue. There's no tape. It's all fully welded seams as it comes up to the top and the corners. We don't have that currently, there's no plywood in the construction here. It's all aluminum and stainless steel, so that's a big upgrade for us from where we've been. I mean, the first box ambulances when they first came out. I think there was actually more plywood in them than there was aluminum, OK? And that's what fell apart was the seats and the cabinetry and those types of things. The same ambulance that we're proposing that you purchase this evening is all metal. So a lot greater lifespan to the, I mean, I'm sure it's you know, you're asking me to look into a crystal ball, I'm sure at some point we're going to be sitting here going or somebody will be sitting here. I don't know it'll be us, but somebody will be sitting here and look at it and go, you know, we've remounted this box now five times. Are we moving forward with another remount or are we going to buy into another replacement? You know, no different than the squad truck. We've said that, you know, every few that would be a whole new replacement just from the wear and tear.

Selectman Guessferd was recognized and said thank you, Madam Chair. I had the privilege recently of going over to the fire station and got an operational review. And this was one of the concepts that they briefed me on with the squad trucks and taught me about the ambulances. Seeing it was made it real. I mean, you know, everything he's saying tonight, it's those ambulances. Those bodies can withstand just a ton of abuse, I guess I'll say. But I mean, I was I learned so much by doing that and fully in support of this concept, both for the squad and for the ambulances. I appreciate you taking me through that. Seeing no further questions from the Board, *Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Guessferd to approve the changes to the EMS program as recommended by the Fire Chief. Carried 5-0.*

E. Hudson Fire Department - Ambulance Bid

Chairman McGrath again recognized Chief Buxton who said so the next piece is to actually move forward with awarding the bid this evening. And so we're trying to purchase a 2022 F-550 four wheel drive type one ambulance. We advertised the ambulance in the Town's website, Union Leader, in email directly to vendors. So we've been at this a couple of days now, so we actually have a list of vendors that have bid before. So we went after and I'm using some brand names here. So you had Braun, you had Excelznce, AV is one of our current ambulances that we have and we have PL Custom and we mail them direct solicitation to try to get them to bid on the on the ambulance itself. Roger Ordway conducted a bid opening for us on September 30, and we received one bid and that was from Excellance. There's a couple of reasons why I think that happens that way. One of which is the fact that the industry itself is, I know we've heard this all a lot, but COVID is screwed up the supply chain, you know, and the reality is, if you look at the workload that folks have right now, like there are, there were companies that just can't keep up. So our current AV vendor, which we have two of their ambulances today and corporate told them not even to bid, they couldn't even fit us into the schedule. So we got one bid. It fits our spec and affords us that opportunity. Excellance is offering us \$6,800 as a trade for the two thousand twelve Osage, and I certainly would support taking that at this point in time. The notes on Excellance itself meets the overall design cabinet and storage construction features I list out there. 25 year structural warranty, 10 year electrical seven year's paint. If you remember correctly from our large fleet purchases, we utilize the HGAC program a couple of different times on the pumps. They have an opportunity. They also participate in that program. But we went direct for a bid and an RFP, so we went out for a straight proposal because we didn't know what we were going to get and what the work was going to look like there. So basically, the next piece would be for you to look at motion two and potentially authorize the purchase of the two ambulances this evening to match up to the replacement program you just endorsed. Certainly open answering questions.

Selectman Morin was recognized and asked anybody around here have ambulances built by that company? Chief Buxton replied, Acton is the closest one to us. Acton has one and they have one under construction right now. Selectman Roy asked are they happy with the product? To which Chief Buxton replied yes they are.

Selectman Guessferd was recognized and asked Yeah, I mean, obviously, when you really have one bid, you know, there's always a concern that you're paying more than you maybe should. Obviously, this environment is a difficult environment in which to which to do this. And you expressed what your thoughts were about why we didn't get any more bids. So I mean, again, it comes down to did we do have other we do have Acton around. Did they provide to you additional like support for like references and things like that? Chief Buxton replied yeah, I have three pages of references Reedy Creek Fire Department down to Disney in Florida. They actually do business with this company. Kissimmee, Florida, does business with this company. Guilford Connecticut does business with this company. Shreveport, Louisiana. They're all big systems. They're not, you know, four ambulances. They're 16 ambulances, 20 ambulances. So they've been at it for a while and we've been following once we got the bid, we've been following Acton, you know, their picture updates every week now, you know, just kind of watching the work and the quality and what that process has been. It has been very positive for them. So we've been kind of checking that reference point. Selectman Guessferd then said so you're assured that you get we got probably the best price we could get given the circumstances. Chief Buxton answered in the situation. I'm comfortable. Yeah, absolutely.

Selectman Gagnon was recognized and said Thank you. And just to ask the question, if we didn't authorize this tonight, how long could you, I guess, hold out in the current circumstances? Because as you've mentioned, everyone in the room knows, you know, COVID and tough times are difficult. Could you hold out potentially for better times? And even if that was a yes? You don't have a crystal ball, but do you think this area may come down in price? Meaning why push tonight? Chief Buxton responded saying so, probably the biggest delta that we're faced with this evening is Ford has decided that the F Super Duty series will no longer be produced after the end of this month. So to get an F 2022 year model, we need to order if we're going to order OK. And they're not going to afford the opportunity for their new design until a year from now, which is going to completely take the ambulance world and flip it upside down. Because the Ford industry or the Ford chassis is probably the number one chassis in the country, you know, so knowing that is out there, I don't see the pricing coming down. I see the pricing going up dramatically just from history of watching new releases. About eight years ago now, we used to run the E Series Ford, which is the van front style, right? And they stopped making those because they couldn't get the airflow over the motor and they were overheating. You know, we saw a \$25,000 increase in the sales that year. So those are big jumps when you start talking model years like that and what's the impact? So I would certainly encourage you to look at this strongly this evening and go forward from there. Selectman Gagnon replied, Ok. Excellent answer. Thank you.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said your third ambulance won't make two years, right? Chief Buxton laughed and said no. The Osage Ambulance, I would certainly encourage you to trade that in. Seeing no further questions <u>Selectman Roy made a motion, seconded by Selectman Gagnon to</u> <u>Motion to authorize the Town of Hudson Fire Department to award the purchase of two (2), 2022</u> <u>Ford F-550 4x4, Type 1 Ambulances to Excellence, Inc. with the annual lease purchase payment of</u> *\$162,103.29 over 4 years as recommended by the Fire Chief and Finance Director. Carried 5-0.* Selectman Morin reiterated, and you already said that this is not a tax impact. Chief Buxton replied correct, it's coming out of the EMS revolving account.

F. 100 Lowell Road

Chairman McGrath recognized Town Planner Brian Groth who said, thank you, Madam Chair, members of the Board. I also have with me, Mr. Brian Craven. 88 Speare Road, Hudson. Mr. Craven said, I'm actually the trustee of the property of 100 Lowell Road. Mr. Groth then said so I'd like to start by breaking one of my cardinal rules of presentations and reading exactly what's in front of you. He continued saying, I'm respectfully requesting that the Board of Selectmen consider the purchase of 100 Lowell Road. The site is approximately 35,000 square feet, with frontage on both Lowell Road and County Road and abuts Souza and Jette Fields. Town ownership of this parcel has a twofold effect or can have a twofold effect. First, it provides the Town with the strategic opportunity for traffic and recreation improvements. Secondly, it prevents commercial development of the site that may be problematic to traffic safety. The site could provide much needed additional parking for the softball fields, as well as other recreational amenities such as basketball or pickup all courts, the strategic location of this parcel may also lend itself useful to any safety modifications to the County Road Lowell Road intersection. Should the Town choose to do so in the future, this intersection has already been identified as a problem and has been the topic of design studies conducted by the Planning Board. Commercial development of 100 Lowell Road would exacerbate the existing problem, in my opinion. So with that, the second page is just to say an aerial view of the site location to show you exactly where it is. And I truly feel that it does have. This is a strategic piece of land that would serve value to the Town for those purposes of traffic, safety and also recreation.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said not sure how I'd understand by putting in a parking lot and all those cars trying to get out on Lowell Road to any different than commercial structure going in there and the cars coming out on Lowell Road. I don't see how you're saying that's a safety thing because you're going to have the same problem. Mr. Groth replied, no, what I would suggest is the driveway curb cuts that currently exist on this parcel at Lowell Road and County Road would be discontinued and that this this portion of land would be accessed only by the entrance to Jette and Sousa Fields. Selectman Morin replied saying all right, you didn't say that. You just said parking there, OK. I still just going to put more traffic into that intersection one way or the other. I don't see how it's going to change. They're just going to come out a little farther. Either they're going to go out County Road or Lowell or they're going to go out the other way to Belknap and County? Chairman McGrath interjected saying, but Selectman Morin I think we had a presentation, I don't remember exactly when it was been a couple of years now anyway, but the Town Planner at the time presented it and talked about changing the alignment of traffic on County Road. They were recommending possibly changing that to a one way as opposed to traffic going down County Road and out or vice versa. I forget. I mean, it's a few years ago we had that discussion, and I don't know if you were on the Board at the time, but. Selectman Morin replied, no, I wasn't. But what I'm going to say it was a few years ago and what have we done? Well, that's my point. I know we're talking about coming out at Belknap onto Birch, but that's at least three years down the road. So I just I understand what you're saying, but a safety thing would just adding a different clientele that could be the problem coming out of this. That's all. Mr. Groth responded saying I think what we're looking at is traffic that already exists today, there's people coming, coming to these softball fields as it is today.

Selectman Morin then said, but you're going to add more. That's all. Mr. Groth said the capacity of the fields is the capacity of the fields. Selectman Morin replied, you put in pickle courts and all that that means there's going to be more traffic in and out of there all the time. That's all. Mr. Groth replied, fair enough. So there's dual purposes to this piece of land, and those design studies were done about two years ago. I believe one of the intersections we put in consideration for the Capital

Improvements Plan, but without funding, we can't do anything. Selectman Morin replied saying, I'm not arguing you, but as always, we have a plan that never comes out. It just sits there and sits there, and that's not your fault. But the point is, you're selling the safety. I don't see any difference. We're just having a different clientele of people coming out of that intersection.

Mr. Craven asked to speak and said so the alternative is trying to develop the property. So we have a current letter of intent to purchase that property with a traffic flow of about 30 cars a day, which we're going to try to pursue through the Planning Board. It's been months in the working. Trying to get access from Lowell Road right into that property is the current curb cut on Lowell Road or the beginning of County Road. So I mean, it's a viable property. We pay taxes on, my estate, pays taxes on and we have to be given some kind of opportunity to develop it or sell it. And it's making it unmarketable to present it to the Planning Board. And basically, the Town doesn't let it. It's like landlocked. It's kind of landlocked. So the alternative is I need to know if the Town is going to permit a business in there, what's the traffic count, allowable traffic count and pursue marketing it to that that buyer. Selectman Morin said but that's not us. That's the Planning Board. Mr. Craven replied, that's right. That's right. Selectman Morin then said it's really not, your property is not the problem. The intersection is the problem. Mr. Craven replied that's right. Yes, but it's my problem though. It's a piece of property that it's kind of in limbo. So it is the intersection, it isn't the property, it is the intersection. So I lived there for three years and this intersection has been an issue since 19, I lived there on there. There was a single family home on that property and I lived in that property when I was in my early 20s. And that has always been a dangerous intersection. And to this day, it's still limbo to this very day. Selectman Morin then said and the problem is that is probably one of the worst intersections in Town, and I've been to numerous serious motor vehicle accidents there. I don't see how this is safety wise is going to change anything. Mr. Groth responded saying you'd be able to reconfigure the intersection. Selectman Morin went on to say other than you coming on your property. We're still going to have a lot of cars coming out there and coming out Of that intersection. Mr. Groth said it would give us more options in terms of design, we could. Selectman Morin asked how? Mr. Groth replied because we'd have land we could use to reconfigure the way the County Road meets Lowell. Selectman Morin then said so before I vote yes on buying that, I want to see that because I don't want to get stuck with a piece of land that where it's still having a serious issue with and add more traffic to that. It's and I understand what you're trying to do, sir. I fully understand. But once we buy it, it's our problem. And if we start parking a lot of cars there and we add pickle courts and tennis courts, that means more and more people are going to be coming out of that intersection. And until we can safely design something either coming out to Birch Street like they're talking about, which I can't see spending a lot of money on County Road if we're planning on to do this Birch Street, because that's going to close County Road if, that happens. So I just can't see doing all this if we don't have a safety plan and where we're going.

Chairman McGrath said can I interrupt Brian? So I think at some point we'll have a discussion tonight about this, this property. But I think that we should get it on the agenda because I remember seeing the plans and discussing multiple plans of closing off County Road at that end or at the other end and this reconfiguration of all of the streets in that area. So I think that, you know, if you don't remember seeing it, Mr. Guessferd certainly didn't see it. And I don't know, I know Mr. Gagnon didn't and I don't know if Selectman Roy has. So that's a conversation that we should have at this, perhaps we can put it on the next agenda to at least see those plans and have a discussion about that, because that is, that road truly is a safety hazard. And I can and I can see the potential if if that's developed and depending on what type of a business goes in there, whether, you know, say it's a bar that goes in there, that's opened up at four o'clock in the afternoon and people are trying to get in there and get out. And I mean, it can create real hazards. So I think that that's something that we should take a look at. Selectman Roy go ahead.

Selectman Roy said so you said that it would be about 30 cars per day? If it was developed the well for what it...Mr. Craven replied the current interested buyer is an oil 10 minute oil change company they came up with a traffic light. I can present it to you. And they said the typical car count is about 30 vehicles per day. Spread out over the course of the day. Selectman Roy replied saying right, so how

many cars go in and out of Jette and Sousa field? Approximately per day? Do you know that now? The Town Administrator answered saying we have softball. When softball is in season it would be two men's teams typically playing at a time. There's probably about 9-10 individuals on a team. I don't think they get a lot of spectators, but you might assume that there might be 25 to 30 cars any given hour when they're playing softball in the season. He then asked Selectman Guessferd do you play? To which Selectman Guessferd replied, I used to so for many years and yeah, that parking lot that's there, the dirt parking lot is, you know, with during a season in the evenings when they have the league, it's it's crowded. I mean, it's hard to find a parking spot, actually, and sometimes you see cars on the road there, you know, outside the parking lot. So yeah, but that's really I know what you're saying it's not the kind of traffic that's all the time. I mean, it's usually...Selectman Roy said right, like how many days a week is that? The Town Administrator replied, four maybe depending on the number of teams? Selectman Guessferd added plus, I think in the fall, there's also a coed league that plays at that point and they play, I think, at different times. They play on the weekends, I think as well. I'm not exactly sure. Selectman Roy asked then if I can make a presumption that it's not during peak traffic times, right. The Town Administrator replied typically an evening because most of the people who play work, I don't know if it's over thirty five, but it definitely...Selectman Guessferd said they use that parking lot to go to Susan Field, so they play usually earlier. So there's usually set of three games, you know, from like it's May through August, you know, every night during the week, Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday. But that's kind of the time frame and what you're proposing, I think, is there be other things in at the times tennis could be done any time, right? Well, it depends if you had lights or not.

Mr. Groth added I'd like to clarify this, so I'm not proposing that the Board approve pickle ball courts and basketball courts and all this stuff. What this these this language is intended to do is to make the argument that there's value in this parcel in Town ownership. And what this intending to do is simply a baby step towards investigating how it might be funded, what it might be used for. So without considering it, this goes nowhere. Um, so I just wanted to make that clear. Mr. Craven then said yeah, so again, the alternative is that there's a business there that has 20 cars a day. It's going to be 20 cars right at the curb cut, it's is right where Lowell Road starts. So that's the most dangerous scenario as opposed to having no lot or to expanding the parking lot, even expanding the parking lot. You could even do that, right? So now all the traffic is one hundred percent of our County Road

Selectman Gagnon was recognized and said so I guess listening to what Selectman Roy said, I was thinking the same assumption that the traffic numbers may be the same, whether it's developed or if we purchase it. But looking at this and really listening to what you were saying, Selectmen Morin, you know, I think if we did purchase it, it would give us the ability to adjust a few variables. One major variable is the curb cut on Lowell Road. We would make the decision to close that and to redirect traffic if we didn't want to make even further changes. If we didn't buy that property, that curb cut exists and then it'd be up to the Planning Board to give them a grievance to keep it there or not keep it there. We wouldn't have any control over that, so they'd be going on directly on Lowell Road. So to me, that seems to support, you know, a decent safety or at least an additional variable that will make that intersection worse. So I can see that being positive. And thank you for what you just stated that that helps me as well. This discussion is just that. It's just a discussion about maybe a letter of intent or moving forward with research. And I don't think that could hurt anyone. So I wouldn't know why I wouldn't say yes to something like this. If you're not asking for money or any, you know, liability currently, maybe you can get that in one second. The other question I had is for the landowner completely transparently, what's in it for you? I mean, why wouldn't you sell it to a developer? Why come here and play ball with us? Mr. Craven replied so I do have a letter of intent with the developer, and they've sent informal letters to the Town Engineer Elvis, who said he would not be in support of recommending any curb cut on Lowell Road. So you'd have to go to the Planning Board. He suggested making maybe a curb cut, possibly on County, there's two of them. If you look at the map, you can kind of see one on Lowell Road and one on County that's kind of blocked by some stone. So that was circumventing the house and that was filled in to level the lot. So that lot is almost perfectly level That's the worst scenario. I lived there. You couldn't you could never go out on County if you

went out on County, if you drove around the house, you went on county and tried to come. You'd be blind. You wouldn't have a line of vision up Lowell Road. Yeah, and you'd be T-boned. So when I lived there, we used to always go, go into County and go out on Lowell because you could see both ways, but you had to see both ways and the person on County. So it was a tricky, you know, you, you get used to it, but it was tricky. So it's kind of like the developers like, OK, we've done our due diligence. They've got the plan for the Town, but they don't really want to go forward unless we make a presentation to the Planning Board because they're kind of like they're, um, they're exhausted with the process.

Selectman Gagnon then said and Mr. Groth, I think I interrupted you. You had something to say when I was speaking. Mr. Groth replied saying with regards to funding part of the next step here, if the Board chooses to take that one step forward would be to identify possible funding streams and depending on the intent of this parcel. It might be a Frankenstein of funds where it's serving several purposes that could qualify under different streams. All you know, attempting to make it not be a tax impact, but through different types of impact fees or other grants and so forth.

Selectman Gagnon then said last one, Madam Chair, just ballpark what's the price of the property like this if we went five steps down the road? What are we talking? A half million? One hundred thousand? Chairman McGrath said I don't think we should even get into that right now. The Town Administrator said that would be a non-public discussion. Selectman Gagnon the said, Ok, thank you. Understood. I retract my question. That's all I had.

Selectman Morin was recognized and said how far are you into this negotiations with the company? I mean, this is a process that we have to go through. Are they gonna wait? Mr. Craven replied, So I did, they did ask me if I could take the ball and move forward with the Planning Board. They're from South Carolina. I don't think they want to use the resources to do that. So I said, Yeah, I would. I would. I've got a conceptual site plan to present the Zoning Board. Chairman McGrath corrected Mr. Craven saying Planning Board. Mr. Craven replied, Planning Board, I mean and that'll be in the next week or so and I'll try to get on that agenda. But if it goes nowhere, which I expect it will, I thought this would be a fallback. I'm trying to close an estate. Selectman Morin asked so you're going to go through the whole process. What? What if it does go through, though? Mr. Craven replied, I don't know. Where would that be? I mean, my first obligation, I think, is to the buyer because I have a signed letter of intent. It's a timing thing. Know? I've been told by more than one person, I've got a couple of letters from the Town about, I don't know if he's still with you, but. So the engineer said I understand it doesn't appear fair, but any curb cut will create a significant safety issue. Chairman McGrath asked, that's the current Town Engineer? Mr. Craven replied, yes, Bruce Buttrick? Chairman McGrath replied, he's the Zoning Administrator. Mr. Craven replied yeah, the small lot size in front of you at the convergence of two streets becomes problematic to develop this parcel. He did say also this this process is an existing non-conforming lot of record with insufficient frontage, which I don't know why. It's met its frontage requirements, I don't know why that was. Mr. Groth added probably because the split between the two streets, but it's an existing law, so that doesn't really matter. Mr. Craven continued saying so I mean, I'm obligated to the buyer to pursue it. But given past history, I don't expect it to go far, but I think I'm going to bring it full, full length so I can get an official denial. Chairman McGrath said go before the Planning Board to present a conceptual plan. You wouldn't get any kind of approval from that anyway. They would tell you whether or not they like the concept or that they could be able be able to work with it. But you wouldn't get any kind of approval just on a conceptual plan.

Chairman McGrath then asked anybody else have any questions? If not, so are we in agreement that we should take a look at the plans that were produced? You probably have copies of them, Brian. Mr. Groth replied, I do. The Chairman continued saying so that the newer members of this Board get to see what I've seen. And, you know, I don't remember all of the concepts that were presented, but there were a few. And it's to alleviate traffic problems on Lowell Road, and we certainly have a

number of traffic problems on Lowell Road. So I think that that would be a good exercise for us just to, you know, spend five or ten minutes looking at that. Is there an agreement to that or? Selectman Roy replied, yeah, yeah, I'd like to see those plans. Selectman Guessferd said, yeah, I don't know enough. Chairman McGrath replied, yeah, well, you wouldn't. I mean, it's just but to take a look at them. And so, Brian, if you can put that on your plan of getting on the next meeting, the next meeting and we'll just put 10 or 15 minutes on, it's not going to take, and have copies available for us to take home, you know, for the newer members so that they can take a look at them, take them home and look at them.Selectman Roy said, well, if we can make it part of the package, that'd be good.

Selectman Morin asked is there a parking lot over by Teledyne for the other field? Selectman Guessferd replied No, I don't think so. Chairman McGrath added, I don't think so either. Mr. Groth added I think they all park there and walk over. Selectman Guessferd said they all park there and walk all the way over to Sousa. The Town Administrator added, that park, topography wise, I know the school is up here. Selectman Guessferd said we've had people park at the school and come down to Sousa. Selectman Morin added, yeah, you get that like a sandpit down there. The Town Administrator said I coached soccer up there and I believe me when the ball went down the field, I didn't go shagging. Some other kid did.

Mr. Groth was again recognized and said one additional thought in terms of those design studies. If the Town had control of this parcel and what we currently have, Sousa and Jette Field, that might open up opportunities for alternative designs as well, it might open up more design alternatives. The Chairman responded saying okay, so Elvis is not here this week. He's got a child issue, so he's not here. But when he gets back next week, you can work with him. The Town Administrator said so you'll get us the plans. Mr. Groth responded saying I have the plans. The Town Administrator added the Board will take a look at them and then everybody can be more educated and maybe have more of a conversation if you want. But it was important to at least bring it forward because once you lose an opportunity, it's gone. Chairman McGrath added well and the Town Engineer can be here at the next when we discuss it again because I've had a discussion with him and I know that how he feels about this.

Mr. Craven said it's a very dangerous. It's a terrible intersection. I agree with it. Chairman McGrath said believe me, I know it's I mean, I've driven by that my entire life, so. And that's just a few years. Ok, so we're done with that then. So we'll see you the next, if you'd like to come to the next Board of Selectmen. Thank you.

G. September Revenues and Expenditures

The Town Administrator was recognized and said as you know we are one quarter of the way through this current fiscal year. And again, a little too early to tell. We've encumbered contracts for trash and whatnot, so it tends to skew the percentages off. But in looking at the general expenses, I'm not too worried. A lot of things happened in the early part of the year, paving, for example, things like that. So it skews numbers. The area that I continue to watch is legal just because we've had a slew of lawsuit issues lately. So I'm just keeping an eye on that. I'm not worried right now, but I keep an eye on it. So from expenditure perspective, I don't see anything abnormal. On a revenue side, it appears the motor vehicles are just about right on track. There are 25.3 so we seem to still have strong auto registration. Obviously, the interest rate is pretty anemic. But as you recall, when we looked at the revenue estimates we just looked at, we adjusted those down that downward. So we adjusted a couple of other things up. Rooms and Meals tax was one of them because we have information that we will probably get more from the state so that balances our revenue. And I think it's again the first quarter of the year. It's difficult to say, you know, we're in a default budget, is everybody's aware. Everybody knows where they stand, what they can do, what they can't do, and its business as usual.

Selectman Morin was recognized and asked Last year at this time are we are above on cars registrations? The Town Administrator replied we were at 26%. Selectman Morin replied Last year, we were? The Town Administrator replied, yes. Selectman Morin asked where we are at this year. I'm sorry. To which the Town Administrator replied 25.3. Selectman Morin asked do you think we're going to start seeing a slowdown because there's no cars. Car dealerships are buying used cars because they have no new ones. We're going to get hit at some point here. Mr. Malizia replied, that's why we have not adjusted our revenues up. Last year, I believe, for the full year. Just let me get back to that page. We did almost 6.1 million

we're still budgeted for 5.4 this year, so we could absorb a differential from last year to this year. Again, I can't predict it, but I know what you're saying. That's why we didn't touch. We didn't touch that number. Chairman McGrath said there's a whole lot of things that are going to be going to be short on.

9. Remarks by the Town Administrator

The Town Administrator said the only thing I have is, as everybody is aware, we start the budget this Thursday. So budget deliberations begin Thursday. I believe you have Fire, Highway, IT coming in. Just for the public's edification. If you go to our web page right on the front page, there's a link you can click. You can go right to our schedule and to the entire budget book. You can scroll through. I believe it's paginated. So if somebody says we're on Page 10, the public could follow along if they so choose. So that starts Thursday. We have meetings next Tuesday and next Thursday for the budget process, so we're going to be right in the thick of it. Chairman McGrath said I've got it marked in my calendar. To which the Town Administrator replied, I'm sure you all do. It will be starting at 7:00 p.m. in this room.

10. Remarks by the School Board

Chairman Gasdia said thank you, Madam Chair. Before I start my remarks, just follow up from the IT Director discussion. We have an IT Director, so I don't know what the plan of how you know you adjust someone's job description. But if you could send that over. The Town Administrator said once I interpret it all I'll send it over. Mr. Gasdia said if you include that language I think we can look into doing that. Selectman Morin's point, if it's not on both and nothing's going to happen. So if we can send that over, that would be great.

Mr. Gasdia went on to say a couple of things with the School District. We just had a four day weekend, which is always great. But on Friday, it was a professional development day for our teachers, and they spend a lot of time getting upskilled on our new learning management systems called Schoolology and another system we have called IReady where, you know, we take these standardized tests as we've always done. But what this system will do, it will actually, on an individual basis, look at everyone's assessment and really give individualized plans as opposed to just looking holistically at the District. And we also spent some time on de-escalation training, as that's something I know is close to Mr. Morins heart that, you know, we want to make sure that we do everything we can to make sure things don't escalate and things can be contained. And what that looks like. So that was a lot there. The atmosphere in the schools, for all intents and purposes, feels normal. We're back to dealing with quote unquote normal issues. For the most part, all the clubs are back all the after school activities. We are seeing some very stressed students. It is a big transition going from remote or hybrid back into the classroom. So that is putting some strain on the system and strain on our staff. So if anyone does know anyone that wants to be a substitute teacher or

anything like that, please let us know. And just like you, it's budget season, so we'll be starting next week.

Chairman McGrath said can I ask a question of you? It occurred to me the other day. As you probably all know, I'm a news hound, so I'm listening to the news all the time and they're talking on the news programs that I listen to about changes, critical race theory that's being taught in the schools, and I didn't know if Hudson was doing that. And secondarily, whether or not, parents nationwide, I would say, at least from what I'm seeing on the news, is that they're concerned about what's being educated, what the educational program is for their children, and they're talking about taking their children out of the public schools and going to a charter school or home schooling. Are we, are we seeing that type of comment or concern by the parents in Hudson? And if so, are they really looking to take their children out of the public schools?

Chairman Gasida replied, yeah so I think in general, over the years, there are people that feel that for whatever reason, if it's, you know, they'll go to a parochial school, if they want more religion, they'll go to home school for different reasons. The critical race theory component is something that we do not teach in the Hudson Public Schools, per say. And when I say per say is if a child asks a question to a teacher, they will answer and there will be discussions, especially at the higher level. You know, an AP class or something like that. And some parents don't want any exposure to anything like that. And so I think it's important to understand that there's critical race theory, which is an actual graduate level studies program. And then there is what is being portrayed on the internet, which is, you know, when you talk about slavery, do we actually engage in that discussion? And some people say we really shouldn't engage in that discussion. And I think that if you went to a third grade classroom today in Hudson, it actually isn't much different than the third grade classroom that we went to when we were kids. I can't speak for other districts, but we don't put any restrictions outside of the law that's in New Hampshire on, say, someone in an AP history class and they want to get into a discussion. We've got to let them get into a discussion. And if you don't want to be part of that, no different than other classes, then yes, there are some people that will go to home school, but we're not seeing a mass exodus.

Chairman McGrath then said just to be clear, I'm hearing it on the news that I that I listen to as opposed to on the internet, which I don't pay attention to. And I certainly don't pay attention to social media because it's not worth spending any time on. Chairman Gasdia replied, When you hear critical race theory that is not being taught in amounts in public schools. Thank you very much. I was just curious. I don't have children in the schools. I never did, never will. But I was curious about that. Thank you.

11. Other Business/Comments by the Selectmen

<u>Selectman Gagnon</u>: Thank you, Madam Chair. I'd just like to highlight a resident, Cory Boutin, He reached out to me. This is a second time. He's done it. He's cleaned up Griffin Road. He had 10 industrial trash bags, seemingly almost a mile of roadway that he did on his own volunteering. And the DPW, thanks to Mr. Forrence, was kind enough to go pick it up for him. Obviously free of charge and headache. So I want to thank both of them for helping clean the Town up. It was very nice.

<u>Selectman Morin</u>: You and myself attended the Firefighters Memorial service and the awards night. On Saturday night, everything went very well and all the deserving Fire Department employees that received awards got them for a very good reason for all the work they've done and congratulate them all. That's it. Thank you. <u>Selectman Roy</u>: I just have one thing. I was kind of happy to see us having so much participation tonight from citizens. It's nice to see. I hope it continues. It helps us do our job because we need to know what, what people think about things. So I just want to thank everybody who showed up today and gave us their opinion on the various issues we had on the agenda. That's all I have.

<u>Selectman Guessferd</u>: I just want to not extend that also to those that take the time to reach out to the Board of Selectmen as well online if they can't attend meetings. There are different ways to reach us and it is very much appreciated when we get when we get input from from citizens, we still probably don't get enough, but in some might say we get too much. But no, we don't get enough. Just like when I was on Budget Committee, so it's it's important if you have a problem or concern, reach out to us and that's about it. Right?

<u>Chairman McGrath:</u> And the only comment that I have is I again, based on Selectman Morin's comments, I went to the event at the Fire Department honoring the firemen that that were chosen for this year. And it's really it's something that I'm gratified to be able to attend, be asked to attend. And so in any event, I wish the congratulations to all of the firemen and paramedics that received honors the other night. So and we're very fortunate in Hudson, by the way, from first responders, all of the firemen, paramedics. Believe me, I know they go out and they pick you. They take you to the hospital. They couldn't be kinder. Just we're very fortunate and the same with the police department. They do an honorable, honorable job and they attend to people in the most horrific circumstances and their kindness couldn't be couldn't be greater than what it is.

12. Nonpublic Session

Motion by Selectman Roy at 9:16 p.m., seconded by Selectman Guessferd to go into non-public session under RSA 91-A: 3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her, unless the employee affected (1) has a right to a meeting and (2) requests that the meting be open, in which case the request shall be granted. (b) the hiring of any person as a public employee. A roll call vote was taken. Carried 5-0.

Chairman McGrath entered Nonpublic Session at 9:16 p.m. thus ending the televised portion of the meeting. Any votes taken upon entering open session will be listed on the Board's next agenda. The public is asked to leave the room.

Chairman McGrath entered open session at 9:45 p.m.

Motions made after nonpublic session

1) Selectman Morin made a motion seconded by Selectman Gagnon to increase payment plan on delinquent taxes for the property discussed to \$5,000 a month. Carried 5-0.

2) Selectman Morin made a motion, seconded by Selectman Gagnon to petition the Public Employees Labor Relations Board (PELRB) to remove the Chief Assessor position from the Hudson Police, Fire and Town Supervisors Association and to reclassify the position as a non-union Department Head position. Carried 5-0.

13. ADJOURNMENT

Motion to adjourn at 9:46 p.m. by Selectman Morin seconded by Selectman Roy. Carried 5-0.

Recorded by HCTV and transcribed by Jill Laffin, Executive Assistant.

Marilyn E. McGrath, Chairman

Bob Guessferd, Vice Chairman

David Morin, Selectman

Kara Roy, Selectman

Brett Gagnon, Selectmen